

Careers, Employability and Enterprise Policy

Review Date: May 2023

Ratified: May 2022

Next Review Date: May 2024

Policy owner: Michelle Hackett

Links to academy policies:

Behaviour for Learning Policy
Child Protection Policy
SEND Policy

RSE Policy

Our Vision

"To open minds, creating opportunities for all to believe in themselves, achieve their potential and develop the skills needed to succeed and enjoy life."

Our Values

Ambition - Fulfil your potential
Integrity - Be honest and trustworthy
Inclusivity - Respect for everyone
Endeavour - Always work hard
Resilience - Never give up

Contents

Our Vision	2
Our Values	2
General Data Protection Regulations	4
1. Introduction	5
1.1 The National Context	5
1.2 Statutory Guidance	6
2. The Greenwood Academy Trust Context	7
2.1 Vision	7
2.2 Our Partners	7
2.3 Our Approach	7
3. The Brunts Academy Context	8
Definitions:	8
4. The Careers, Employability and Enterprise programme	10
5. Links with employers, providers, schools, colleges and academies	10
6. Aims of the Careers, Employability and Enterprise Programme	10
7. The objectives of the Careers, Employability and Enterprise program	me11
8. The Offer	11
9. Implementation of this strategy	13
10. Equal Opportunities	13
11. School Community	13
12. Useful Website Links	13

General Data Protection Regulations



This policy has been reviewed in accordance with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) which will replace the Data Protection Act 1998 from 25th May 2018. The introduction of GDPR has resulted in changes to many existing data protection rules and regulations that educational establishments adhere to. The Trust has undertaken a full data protection audit and have ensured that appropriate changes that have been made to data protection rules and regulations have been adhered to in full. The Trust has carried out all additional compliance requirements and fully accepts their duty of care to ensure individuals' data is kept safe and secure, resulting in increased compliance in our systems, processes and policies.

1. Introduction

1.1 The National Context

There have been significant changes in government thinking with regard to Careers, Employability and Enterprise Education (CEEE). The key drivers have been:

- Careers guidance and access for education and training providers Statutory guidance for scrutiny boards, school leaders and school staff
- Careers Strategy: making the most of everyone's skills and talents
- Careers & Enterprise Company (CEC) created to transform the provision of careers education as recommend in 'Enterprise for All' Lord Young
- Ofsted (Sept 2019) 'The Common Inspection Framework: Education, Skills and Early Years' (page 12 & 14, paragraph 28 & 31)
- 'Careers Guidance and Inspiration in Schools'
- 'The Report on Small Firms', Lord Young
- the National Career Council published its second report "Taking Action: Achieving a Culture Change in Careers Provision"
- In 2010, the Department for Education (DfE) published 'An Evaluation of Careers Education in Primary Schools'.
- Careers guidance and access for education and training providers. Jan 2023

The outcomes of the key drivers are:

- To make Britain fairer improve social mobility and offer opportunities to everyone, including more focused opportunities for young people with SEND.
- Every school and academy providing secondary education using the Gatsby Benchmarks to develop and improve their careers provision.
- Every school must publish a policy statement setting out their arrangements for provider access for Years 8 -13 to inform them about approved technical educational qualifications or apprenticeships.
- Every school should begin to offer every young person 7 encounters with employers, at least one from Year 7 to Year 13.
- Every school must ensure that pupils are provided with independent careers guidance from year 8 to year 13
- A network of CEC Enterprise Advisors to create lasting connections between local businesses and schools & colleges
- Ofsted will take account of CEEE when making judgements of the effectiveness of leadership & management and personal development, behaviour and welfare
- The statutory guidance clearly states that the governing body should provide clear advice to the head teacher on which he/she can base a strategy for advice and guidance, which is appropriately resourced and meets the legal requirements

- It is now the case that those aged 18-24 are almost twice as likely as older age groups to say they intend to start a business in the next three years
- Importance of bridging the gap between families, the classroom and the world of work which will
 have an impact on breaking down barriers that prevent children and young people from making the
 most of their talent and skills
- Primary school children who participate in career education programmes are more confident and knowledgeable about the types of work and the pathways that could be followed

1.2 Statutory Guidance

The updated statutory guidance sets out a long term plan to deliver a world class careers system that will help young people choose the career that is right for them. The aims are that 'every child should leave school prepared for life in modern Britain'. The guidance gives a clear message to scrutiny board, school leaders and school staff on their responsibilities to ensure not only academic rigour and excellent teaching but also the importance of young people developing the values, skills and behaviours they need for life. In addition, young people need to have realistic career ambitions that meet the need of the economy. It also states that 'employers play a key role in inspiring young people about their future career choices'. Employers can give a more realistic perspective in offering careers information, advice and guidance to young people. Careers education is about aspiration as much as information, advice and guidance. The best mentoring and motivation comes from people in jobs. It is vital that employers and schools work closely together and the government will help facilitate this by the new Careers and Enterprise Company.

It is the responsibility of the scrutiny board to ensure that all registered pupils are provided with independent careers guidance from year 8 to year 13.

- The scrutiny board should provide clear advice and guidance to the Headteacher on which he/she
 can base a strategy for careers education and guidance which meets the school's legal
 requirements, is developed in line with the Gatsby Benchmarks
- The scrutiny board need to ensure that all registered pupils at the school are provided with independent careers guidance from year 8 to year 13 (Independent is defined as external to the school). External sources of careers support could include employer visits, mentoring, website, telephone and helpline access and personal guidance provided externally to the school
- Every school should have a member of their scrutiny board who takes a strategic interest in careers education and guidance and encourages employer engagement

In relation to pupils with special educational needs or disabilities, the guidance states:

- Schools should ensure that careers guidance for pupils with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) is differentiated, where appropriate and based on high aspirations and a personalised approach.
- Many pupils with SEN and disabilities are capable of sustainable employment and professionals
 working with these young people should share that presumption and help them develop the
 employability skills and experience to succeed, including supported internships for young people
 with ECH plans
- Families need to understand that some children with SEN and disabilities, with the right support, can find paid work, be supported to live independently and participate in the community

- Partnerships with employment services, businesses, housing agencies, disability organisations and
 arts and sports groups are important to help young people understand what is available to them as
 they get older. For children with EHC plans, they need to understand how Personal Budgets can be
 used to access activities to promote greater independence and learn life skills
- For teenagers, preparation for adult life needs to be a more explicit element of their planning and support, focusing on preparation for adulthood, including employment, independent living and participation in society

2. The Greenwood Academy Trust Context

2.1 Vision

"Greenwood academies trust's vision is to inspire and to ensure that every pupil thrives, makes excellent progress and succeeds."

The Greenwood Academies Trust Careers and Employability Strategy aims to provide all young people, in all of our academies, with a **stable programme** of inspirational careers activities and opportunities in order to develop important **employability skills**.

Using the Gatsby Benchmarks for Good Career Guidance, careers leads in all academies strive to provide a varied offer, to pupils of all ages, which is relevant to the **local labour market** and job opportunities that are likely to exist for our school leavers. We are working in partnership with Career Mark to provide external validation of the Gatsby Benchmarks through the Quality in Careers Standard.

2.2 Our Partners

The Trust will work in partnership with employer networks, FE colleges, higher education institutions, technical skills providers, mentors, coaches, alumni and/or other high achieving individuals to motivate our children and young people to think beyond their immediate experiences, encouraging them to consider a broader and more ambitious range of future education and career options.

The Trust will work with families to support them in overcoming the cultural obstacles that often stand in the way of the ablest pupils from deprived backgrounds attending university and progressing into high level jobs in the labour market. The Tust will be proactive in bridging the gap between families, the classroom and the world of work, as recommended in the National Careers Council Report – 'Taking Action, Achieving a Culture Change in Careers Education' and the 'State of the Nation report on social mobility in Great Britain' November 2017

2.3 Our Approach

Collaboration is at the heart of our careers strategy and a number of key partners help us to provide invaluable **experiences of work** and **interactions with employers and employees**. We are proud to work closely with **university and further education** partners to raise aspirations and widen participation in education opportunities.

Increasingly, careers is becoming more embedded within our **curriculum**, with teachers from all year groups and subject areas being committed to teaching and learning in the context of the real world.

We are proud of the **personalised approach** we take towards providing tailored careers experiences for individuals and targeted groups of pupils. **Personal advice and guidance** from a trained careers

professional for all GAT secondary students, at key transition points, supports young people to make informed decisions about their next steps.

Our commitment is to provide memorable, meaningful and enjoyable interactions with employers. All GAT pupils experience two interactions at primary phase and then one in each school year at secondary phase and Sixth Form. Studies have shown that young people who can recall four or more employer contacts whilst in education are five times more likely to continue in education, training or secure employment.

The Greenwood Academy Trust has adopted the D2N2 Employability Framework and adapted it to meet the careers, employability and enterprise needs of young people across all phases of education. At the core of this new Framework is the idea that all young people should have the opportunity to engage with employers, learn about the world of work and develop their employability and enterprise skills. The development of employability and enterprise skills is not just a quick fix, over the long term it must also support the development of higher level skills through apprenticeships, participation in further and higher education and business start-ups. Children and young people should complete their education with good qualifications, experience of the workplace and the ability to secure employment that will contribute to the local, regional, national and global economy.

The Trust makes a commitment to adopt the Gatsby Benchmarks and utilise the tools, (Compass and Tracker tools) developed by the Careers and Enterprise Company to implement those benchmarks.

3. The Brunts Academy Context

The Academy policy for Careers, Employability and Enterprise is in keeping with the vision and values of the academy

'To open minds, creating opportunities for all to believe in themselves, achieve their potential and develop the skills needed to succeed and enjoy life'.

With this vision and the following values in mind:

Ambition Integrity Inclusivity Endeavour Resilience

Definitions:

Careers:

Careers consists of Careers Education, Careers Guidance and Careers Information. The four main themes for this are;

- planning for change,
- decision making
- self-development
- making guided choices

Employability:

Employability describes the skills, attitudes and behaviours that allow young people to find, keep and progress within work.

Enterprise:

Enterprise can refer to an organization or entrepreneurial activity and an individual's eagerness to do something new and clever, despite any risks.

A young person's career is their pathway through learning and work. All young people need a planned programme of activities to help them make 14-19 choices that are right for them and to be able to manage their careers throughout their lives. Schools have a statutory duty to provide careers education in years 7-11 and to give students access to careers information and guidance. "Section 29 of the Education Act 2011 placed schools under a duty to secure access to independent careers guidance for their pupils in years 9 to 11. From September 2013 this extended to years 8 to 13 and revised statutory guidance has been published to reflect this change". Careers guidance must be presented in an impartial manner and promote the best interests of the pupils to whom it is given. It must also include information on options available in respect of 16-18 education or training, including apprenticeships and other work-based education and training options. The Brunts Academy is committed to providing a planned programme of Careers, Employability and Enterprise for all students in years 7-13. The Academy has recently secured the CareerMark accreditation and will endeavour to implement the key recommendations. We also endeavour to follow the Careers Development Institute (CDI) Careers Framework (November 2015) and other relevant guidance from the DfE, QCA and OFSTED, People's Information, Advice and Guidance. As a member of the Trust we meet our legal responsibility for securing access to independent and impartial guidance for all pupils in years 8 - 13. Independent is defined as external to schools, impartial is defined as showing no bias or favoritism towards a particular option and careers guidance refers to services and activities to assist pupils to make and implement education, training and occupation choices to learn how to manage careers. Young people have the opportunity to develop their knowledge and skills so they make the right choice and effective transition to their preferred pathway.

At the Brunts Academy we believe that all young people and parents will need advice, guidance and support in working towards and planning for the future after leaving the academy. Parental involvement is seen as an integral part of careers, employability and enterprise education. The Brunts Academy will be supported by The Greenwood Academy Trust to provide a relevant and personalised Careers, Employability and Enterprise programme for students at the appropriate stage in their learning.

To secure the best chances our young people have in gaining employment and at the same time addressing the skill needs of employers in our area, we are working to the D2N2 Careers, Employability and Enterprise Framework. This framework provides the methodology by which we can significantly improve the employability and life skills of our young people regardless of their academic ability or which career pathway they chose to take.

The adopted framework consists of 10 key goals which young people should have the opportunity of developing before they leave full time education:

- Invest in themselves, recognise their own strengths and values, `and take responsibility for developing their work readiness skills and behaviours. **Self-motivated.**
- Have the tools and skills required to present themselves to a future employer. Self-assured.
- Have high aspirations for themselves. Aspirational.
- Understand the opportunities available to them locally and beyond and make realistic choices.
 Informed.
- Have experiences of work that is rewarding and fulfilling. Experienced.
- Achieve qualifications valued by employers. Achieving.
- Understand that employers want people who will work hard and are accountable for their actions. **Accountable.**

- Understand that employers want young people who can listen and learn from their successes and their mistakes, and keep going. **Resilient**.
- Work creatively to achieve their potential and that of the business. Entrepreneurial
- Have effective communication and co-working skills. **Co-operative**.

4. The Careers, Employability and Enterprise programme

The Careers, Employability and Enterprise programme will enable pupils to:

- Develop an understanding of their own skills, values and aspirations.
- Navigate pupils though the diverse career opportunities available to them.
- Understand the realistic opportunities that will exist in the labour market when they leave education.
- Develop their communication, team working, commercial awareness and other employability/work related learning skills.
- Search out and secure progression opportunities that uses pupil's talents to support a healthy economy.

The impact of the Careers, Employability and Enterprise programme will be that pupils are:

- Driven and self-directed.
- Self- assured and informed.
- Self- aware and resilient.
- Enterprising and entrepreneurial.
- Proud of themselves.

5. Links with employers, providers, schools, colleges and academies

The Brunts Academy works in collaboration with a wide range of HE, FE and business providers to support all students with their career journey.

6. Aims of the Careers, Employability and Enterprise Programme

The programme is structured around The D2N2 Careers, Employability and Enterprise Framework, the Gatsby Benchmarks and the three core aims of the CDI Careers Framework which presents learning outcome statements for students across seventeen important areas of careers, employability and enterprise skills:

- 1. Developing yourself through careers, employability and enterprise education
- 2. Learning about careers and the world of work
- 3. Developing your career management, employability and enterprise skills

7. The objectives of the Careers, Employability and Enterprise programme

The Gatsby Benchmarks

- A stable careers programme. Every school and college should have an embedded programme of career education and guidance that is known and understood by students, parents, teachers, governors and employers.
- Learning from career and labour market information. Every student, and their parents, should have access to good quality information about future study options and labour market opportunities. They will need the support of an informed adviser to make best use of available information.
- Addressing the needs of each student. Students have different career guidance needs at different stages. Opportunities for advice and support need to be tailored to the needs of each student. A school's careers programme should embed equality and diversity considerations throughout.
- Linking curriculum learning to careers. All teachers should link curriculum learning with careers. STEM subject teachers should highlight the relevance of STEM subjects for a wide range of future career paths.
- 5. Encounters with employers and employees. Every student should have multiple opportunities to learn from employers about work, employment and the skills that are valued in the workplace. This can be through a range of enrichment activities including visiting speakers, mentoring and enterprise schemes.
- Experiences of workplaces. Every student should have first-hand experiences of the workplace through work visits, work shadowing and/or work experience to help their exploration of career opportunities, and expand their networks.
- 7. Encounters with further and higher education. All students should understand the full range of learning opportunities that are available to them. This includes both academic and vocational routes and learning in schools, colleges, universities and in the workplace.
- 8. Personal guidance. Every student should have opportunities for guidance interviews with a career adviser, who could be internal (a member of school staff) or external, provided they are trained to an appropriate level. These should be available whenever significant study or career choices are being made.

8. The Offer Key Stage 3

Assemblies on employability skills and higher education

- Focused support from tutor sessions to understand career pathways and sixth form/college options
- Police / Armed Forces Assemblies
- Tutor sessions on financial planning and management
- Tutor sessions about careers
- Careers Days
- Unifrog login to complete career tasks and track their career journey

Key Stage 4

- All students have a career appointment with a careers advisor to discuss next steps and possible career pathways.
- DANCOP assemblies on employability skills and higher educations.
- One-to-one meetings with advisors from local colleges

- Support from tutors to apply and secure places for sixth form/college
- Futures provide one-to-one support for pupils who required additional guidance and check in on all pupils at the end of the year.
- Police / Armed Forces Assemblies
- Tutor sessions on Martin Lewis financial advice
- Barclays life skills tutor sessions on finding career pathway and creating a CV
- Careers Days
- Mock interview days
- Unifrog login to complete career tasks and track their career journey
- Work experience

Sixth Form

General Sessions for all Sixth Form Students

- LFA Holocaust Educational Trust Auschwitz project
- Subject specific sessions e.g. Maths workshop Nottingham Playhouse / Y13 Business revision/grade booster workshop – Leeds
- UCAS journey DANCOP
- Researching HE options NTU
- How to write a good personal statement NTU
- Revision techniques and exam tips NTU
- Unifrog login to complete career tasks and track career journey

Year 12 Sessions

- Introduction to HE Uni of Sheffield
- Emotional Fitness & Wellbeing Uni of Lincoln
- Russell Group universities & applying for competitive courses Uni of Sheffield
- Studying Medicine and Dentistry Uni of Sheffield
- WP opportunities Discover Sheffield/Sutton Trust/Perceptions of Reality, Uni of Leeds/NTU Progression/Social Mobility Foundation
- VIAM Road Safety Team Drive Alive
- Asset Trust Register & Be a lifesaver
- Higher & Degree Apprenticeships Sheffield Hallam University
- Social Media and Linkedin as an employability tool
- Y12 students attend the annual UCAS HE 'Discover' event at Sheffield Arena

Year 13 Sessions

- Personal statement workshop Uni of Sheffield
- HDLA Apprenticeships, inc timeline DANCOP
- Emotional Fitness & Wellbeing Uni of Lincoln
- Researching your options NTU
- Clearing, Extra and replying to offers NTU
- Student Finance NTU
- Thriving to offers NTU
- Sexions NHS Health Team.
- 1 to 1 careers interview.

9. Implementation of this strategy

- Audit current provision across all year groups and curriculum areas to ensure that all students have the
 opportunity of achieving the relevant D2N2 Careers, Employability and Enterprise goals and the
 academy is fulfilling their statutory requirements.
- Using the compass+ tool to ascertain progress for the academy against the 8 Gatsby benchmarks.
- Use the unifrog tracker tool to plan the careers activities across all year groups.
- Work with the dedicated governor and Enterprise Adviser to ensure effectiveness and leadership of the programme.
- Deliver a coherent programme across all year groups with relevant clear progression routes. This programme to link to the established KS4 employability programme.
- All staff contribute to the careers education and IAG delivered through their roles as tutors and subject teachers, during mentoring/tutorial time/annual reviews.
- The careers education and IAG programme includes career guidance activities delivered via cohort, small group sessions and individual interviews.
- Schemes of work will include appropriate and timely work related learning aspects delivered by subject teachers in the curriculum.
- Evaluate all programmes to understand the impact
- The training and support needs of staff involved in coordinating, delivering and supporting careers education guidance and IAG are identified and met through the CPD programme.

10. Equal Opportunities

All information, advice and guidance will be provided impartially to all students and will be provided free of bias to comply with the Equality Act 2010 and the Careers Development Institute Code of Ethics. Students will be encouraged to look at careers and courses outside the normal gender stereotypes.

Following the new guidance all students with SEND will be entitled to transition plans. Where a student has an Education Health Care Plan, all reviews of that plan from Year 9 and onwards will include a focus on preparing them for adulthood, independent living, employment and participation in society. Pupils with SEND will receive independent and impartial advice about mainstream education, training and employment opportunities on offer, regardless of their individual circumstances to support them for the next phase of education or training and beyond into adult life.

11. School Community

Pupils, teachers and parents are made aware of the entitlement through the careers website page, tutor notices. Pupils are encouraged to view their entitlements regularly during tutorial settings. Access to the Academy's Careers Advisor, Mentors, teaching staff and other members of the department during parents evening and at sixth form open evenings. Information is also shared on social media via Twitter and Facebook.

12. Useful Website Links

See our school website for parent, student and staff links.